nited States Bistrict Court

VESTERN DISTRICT OF M SSQURI

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

V. CASE NUMBER:

. _ —~ W/
ONE LOT OF RADI O COMMUNI CATI ONS (35-5003 L sw
DEVI CES, RF POWER AMPLIFI ERS, AND
RE TEST EQU PVENT CAPABLE OF
OPERATI ON BETWEEN 6951 kHz AND
7480  KHz,

TO: Name and Address of Dsfendant)

KEVIN K. TRUMVEL
1122 W UNI VERSI TY
SPRI NGFI ELD MO

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required to file with the Clerk of this Court and serve upon

PLAINTIFF’'S ATTORNEY (name and address)

CYNTH A J. HYDE

ASST. U S. ATTORNEY

901 ST. LOU S STREET SU TE 500
SPRI NGFI ELD MO 65806
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Aclaimwthin 10 days after service of this summons upon you, exclusive of the
day of service, and an answer to the Conplaint within 20 days after the filing

of your claim as required by Rule C of the Supplenental Rules of the Federal Rules
of Gvil Procedure for Certain Adnmiralty and Maritinme Claims. |If you fail to

do so, judgment by default nay be entered for the relief demanded in the conplaint.

ROBERT F. OOSSOR O)-177-95

CLERK DATE

dﬂ&'f A dmdzz@w&

BY DEPUTY CLERK




IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT FOR THE
VWESTERN DI STRICT OF M SSCURI
SOQUTHWESTERN DI VI SI ON

UNITED STATES COF AMERI CA,
Plaintiff,
Case No.

ONE LOT OF RADI O COMVUNI CATI ONS
DEVI CES, RF POAER AMPLI FI ERS, AND
RF TEST EQUI PMENT CAPABLE OF
OPERATI ON  BETWEEN 6951 kHz AND
7480 kHz,

Nt Nt st Nl i it it it “ust sl it it it “utt

Def endant s.

WARRANT FOR ARREST OF PROPERTY

TO: THE UNITED STATES MARSHAL, OR ANY OIHER DULY AUTHORI ZED

FEDERAL LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER:

A Conplaint had been filed by the United States of America
along with an affidavit nmade by Ronald D. Ramage, Engi neer, Federal
Conmuni cati ons Conmi ssi on. The affidavit states that he has a
reason to believe that the articles described above as One | ot of
Radi o Conmuni cati ons Devices, RF power Anplifiers, and RF test
Equi pment capabl e of operation between 6951 kHz and 7480 kHz were
unlawfully and illegally operated in violation of 47 U S.C. 301 and
are, therefore, subject to seizure and forfeiture to the United
States of Anerica, pursuant to 47 510(a).

An Order has been entered by the United States Magistrate
Judge finding that there is probable cause to believe that the
articles so described were unlawfully and illegally used and that

sufficient grounds for issuance of a seizure warrant are stated in

ﬁ:“} AN N
COPY



the supporting affidavit of Ronald D. Ramage. You are further

advised that the term "One |lot of Radi o Conmunications Devices, RF
power Anplifiers, and RF test Equipnment capable of operation
between 6951 kHz and 7480 kHz" is a term of art used in the
Affidavit and Conplaint to describe radio transmtters, radio
receivers, connecting cables, external RF power anplifiers, and
radio test equipnent. The United States Marshal, at his
discretion, shall be acconpanied by federal, state or |ocal |aw
enforcement officers to assist himin the execution of this

Warrant, including but not limted to duly authorized Engineers of

t he Federal Conmunications Conm ssion.

YOU ARE HEREBY COMVANDED to enter upon the property |ocated at
3111 Martin Drive, Joplin, Mssouri 64804, further described as a
blue, single-famly dwelling with white trim and conposite roof
with the nunbers 3111 displayed on the side of the mail box |ocated
atthecurb immediately in front of the residence. You are therein
to arrest and take into custody, until further order of the Court,
t he above described articles.

Claimants to the above described articles which are the
subject of this action shall file their clains with the Ofice of
the Cerk and serve a copy thereof upon Assistant United States
Attorney, Cynthia J. Hyde, 901 St. Louis Street, Suite 500,
Springfield, Mssouri 65806, within ten (10) days after execution
of the Warrant or notice of this seizure, whichever occurs first,
pursuant to Rule C of the Supplenental Rules for Certain Admiralty

and Maritime dains, and shall serve and file their answers within



twenty (20) days after the filing for the claim

| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that a return of this Warrant shall be
made within ten (10) days of execution, together with notice to the
Court of the individuals upon whom copi es were served and the
manner enployed, and a statement as the satisfaction of the orders

herei n i1ssued.

DATED this 1 7 t h day of January 1995.



IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRICT COURT FOR AB
VWESTERN DI STRICT OF M SSOURI
SOUTHWESTERN DI VI SI ON

UNI TED STATES OF ANERI CA,
Plaintiff,

Case No.
O5-5003- LySw of

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
1

ONE LOT OF RADI O COVMUNI CATI ONS

DEVI CES, RF POMER AMPLIFIERS, AND )
RF TEST EQU PVENT CAPABLE OF )
CPERATI ON' BETVEEN 6951 kHz AND )
7480 kHz, )

Def endant s.

ORDER

| have read both the Conplaint for Forfeiture Ln Remin the
above-styled case and the affidavit of Ronald D. Ramage, Engi neer,
Federal Communi cations Conmi ssi on. | find and conclude on the
evi dence before nme at this tinme that probable cause exists to
beli eve that the defendant, One lot of Radio Communications
Devices, RF power Amplifiers, and RF test Equi pnent capabl e of
operati on between 6951 kHz and 7480 kHz, is located in the Wstern
District of Mssouri, and was unlawfully and illegally used and
operated in violation of 47 U S.C. 301 and therefore, is subject to
seizure and forfeiture to the United States of America, pursuant to
47 U S. C

Based upon ny findings and conclusions, it is hereby

ORDERED that the Cerk shall forthwith issue and deliver to

COPY



the United States Marshal a Warrant for Arrest of Property for the
defendant, One |ot of Radi o Communi cati ons Devices, RF power
Anplifiers, and RF test Equipnent capable of operation between 6951
kHz and 7480

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Deputy U S. Marshal is
authorized to enter the prem ses described in the Conplaint and
Affidavit, and the Cerk shall include a command of entry in the
Warrant for Arrest of Property. The U.S. Marshal is hereby
aut horized, at his discretion to be acconpanied by federal, state,
or local law enforcenent officers to assist himin the execution of
the Warrant, including but not limted to duly authorized agents of
the Federal Conmunications Conm ssion.

IT IS SO ORDERED this ZZ#Z day of January 1995, at
Springfield, Mssouri.




IN THE UNI TED STATES DI STRICT COURT FOR
VWESTERN DI STRICT CGF M SSOURI
SOUTHWESTERN DI VI SI ON

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,

Plaintiff,

ONE LOT OF RADIO COVMUNI CATI ONS
DEVI CES, RF POVWER AMPLI FI ER8, AND
RF TEST EQUI PMENT CAPABLE OF
OPERATI ON BETWEEN 6951 kHz AND
7480 kHz,

N Nl s s N N i ) o N i P st

Def endant s.

LAINT FOR FORFEITURE IN REM

The United States of Anerica by and through its attorneys,
states its conplaint against the defendant articles as follows:

1. This is an_in remforfeiture action brought pursuant to
47 U. S. C. 510.

2. Plaintiff, the United States of America, is a sovereign
nation authorized to sue by 28 U S. C. 1345.

3. The Court has jurisdiction pursuant to the statutes
cited above and 28 U S.C. 1355, 1356, and 2461.

4. The equi pnent described in the declaration as
constituting the "radio station" and referred to herein as
"articles" all constitute "One Lot of Radio Conmmunications
Devi ces, RF power Anplifiers, and RF test Equipnment capable of
operati on between 6951 kHz and 7480 kHz" and is further described
as radio transmtters, radio receivers, connecting cabl es,

external RF power anplifiers, and RF test equipnent.

COPY



5. These Defendant articles are being operated for the
purpose of emanating radio frequency energy within this district
fromthe residence known as 3111 Martin Dr., Joplin, Mssouri
64804.

6. These Defendant articles are being used in violation of
47 U.S.C. 301. The facts supporting this conplaint are set forth
in the attached affidavit and are incorporated herein by
reference.

7. The articles are subject to seizure and forfeiture to
the United States as authorized by 47 U S.C 510(a).

VWHEREFORE, plaintiff prays that process in rem in due form
of law, be issued against these Defendant articles sunmmoning them
to appear and answer the allegations of this conplaint; that
judgnent of forfeiture be entered against the Defendant articles;
and that Plaintiff have such other relief as the Court deens just

and proper.

Respectful |y submtted,

Stephen L. HIIl, Jr.
United States Attorney

BY C»{YFHh&ﬂJ %)‘ Qx%foL

Cynthia J. Hyde,
Assi st ant thted States Attorney



AFEFIDANVIT

|, Ronald Ramage, being first duly sworn, depose and
state as follows:

1. | am currently enployed by the Federal Conmuni cati ons
Conmm si on and have been enpl oyed by this Agency since Septenber
1983. | hold the position of Electronics Engineer at the
Comm ssion's Kansas City, Mssouri, Field Ofice, and have held
that position since Septenber 1983. | hold aBachel or of Science
Degree in Electrical Engineering from Kansas State University.

2 My duties as El ectronics Engineer include the
monitoiing, direction finding, and inspection of all non-licensed
radio stations. This includes the use of sophisticated nobile
automatic direction finding (MDF) equipnent capabl e of
pi npointing the source of radio transm ssions. The equipnent is
vehi cl e nounted and enables ne to locate the source of a
transm ssion by neasuring the strength of the signal. Nornal
procedure after determning the general |ocation of the source of
the transmssion is to go to the area and enploy this equi pnent
to determ ne the exact source of the transmission. This includes
driving around the nei ghborhood and taking different directional
bearings of the signal fromdifferent |ocations and then
conparing those results and "triangulating" the source of the
el ectronic signal. During ny career, | have used the direction
finding methods described above to |ocate the source of radio
transmissions nore than 400 times without error.

3 The operation of any radio equi pment for which a
license is required in such a nmanner that allows radio frequency
(rRF) energy to be transmtted fromone place in any state,
territory, or possession of the United States to another place in
the same state, territory, or possession, wthout such a |icense
granted for the operation is in violation of 47 U S. C 301.

4 The Federal Conmunications Comm ssion has several
of fices spaced throughout the United States that have the
capability of receiving and triangulating the source of high
frequency (HF) radio signals anywhere in the world to within a
fewmles of the source. One of the functions of this conbined
net of offices is to nonitor for unlicensed "Pirate" radio
OEerators who intentionally transmt on frequencies for which
they have no |icense. During the period of Novenmber 22, 1992,
t hrough and including Decenber 31, 1994, this group of offices
has determ ned that one particular radio operator who identifies
hinself as "radio airplane has been operating an unlicensed
radio station in the vicinity of Joplin, Mssouri, while



transmtting on various frequencies wthin the band of 6951 ki
7480 kHz. Each of these occurrences were logged by the on duty
oEerator of each Commssion office/monitoring station receiving
the transmssion. A conprehensive direction finding (DF) fix was
then determ ned, based on the cwahty of signal received by each
of these offices/monitoring stations. | have been informed by

our Gand Island Nebraska Ofice that the fixes which are based
on nunerous transm ssions fromthis "radio airplane" fall within
alb mle radius of Joplin, Mssouri.

5 On Decenber 29, 1994, the Commssionas G and |s|and
Cifice'received a facsimle froma private individual which
consisted of a conputerized printout obtained from the Internet.
This printout contained a public nessage titled "New Years Day
Pirate Broadcasts." Included in the text of the nessage was a
statenent that "Radio Airplane" would be operating on "15050 kHz"
at 1800 GV and around 6955 kHz in upper sideband" starting at
2200 avr (4:00 p.m) on New Years Eve. The nessage was dated
Decenber 28, 1994,

6 On Decenber 31, 1994, at approximately 7.05 p.m, while
utlizing the sophisticated direction finding equipnent described

above, | pinpointed the source of the radio transm ssions
emanating on the fre uenck//B69_57 kHz to be originating from the
resi dence known as 3111 Martin Dr., Joplin, Mssouri. In
conducting this investigation | enployed the direction finding
met hods described above. Additionally, | nade a visual

i nspection of the suspect residence and noted that several lights
were on bhoth within the residence and in the opened garage where
a vehicle was parked. Another vehicle was parked in the driveway
of the residence imediately behind the vehicle in the open
garage and bearing M ssouri license plate #LR8-461. \While | was
making this determnation, Conm ssion Engi neer M chael Gusick was
with ne in the MADF vehicle and he was talking on a cellular

t el ephone with Comm ssion Engineer Oark Poole of the Gand
Island COffice. ImredlateIK after determning the source of the
transm ssions, | spoke with M. Poole and listened to the audio
he was receiving on 6956 kHz at the Gand Island, Nebraska Ofice
where he was |ocated. The audio | could hear in the phone, that
M. Poole stated was from the received radio signal on 6956 kH,
mat ched exactly with the nusic | was nonitoring on 6957 kHz on
the radio receiver in the MDF vehicle.

T The mnute difference between the 6956 kHz and 6957 kH
settings on our respective radio receivers is probably due to the
calibration between the dial settings on each of the two
receivers bei n% used. From ny past experiences the radio signals
used for this type of operation are several kilohertz w de and as
a result the same signal can easily be heard within a mnor



kil ohertz variance in receiver settings. Therefore, | am
confident that both ark Poole and nyself were listening to the
sane radio transm ssion originating fromthe same |ocation as
descri bed above.

8 According to the Joplin area telephone directory and
the Misouri Division of Mdtor Vehicles, the address of 3111 _
Martin Dr., Joplin Mssouri is the residence of a M. John David
Cruzan and Kelly L. Cruzan.

9 The frequency band of 6765-7000 kHz is allocated for
use t h e United States for Non-Governnent use in the Aviation
and International Fixed Public radio services in accordance with
47 C.F.R Section 2.106. Both of these radio services require
that a Comm ssion issued |icense be obtained prior to
commencenent of any radio transmssions. | have checked the
Commi ssion's records and found no record of either John D. Cruzan
or Kelly L. Cruzan being issued any radio station licenses. In
addition, | could find no records authorizing any radio station
at the location known as 3111 Martin Dr., Joplin,” Mssouri. _
Based on ny experience and investigation | believe that the radio
being operated on Decenber 31, 1994, on the frequency of 6957 kH
fromthe premses known as 3111 Martin Dr., Joplin, ssouri is
an illegal unlicensed radio station.

10 The vehicle bearing Mssouri |icense plate #LR3-461 is
registered within the State of Mssouri to a M. Kevin K
Trummel, 1122 W University, Springfield, Mssouri 65807. The
State of Mssouri records indicate that the birth date for M.
Trummel is June 3, 1964. According to the Conm ssion's records a
Kevin K Trumel with the sane birth date is licensed by the FCC
as a Ceneral Oass Amateur radio operator under |icense NG@G
No other records were found for M. Trunmel which would indicate
that he was issued any other |icense by the Comm ssion.

11 The facsimle received by the Comm ssion on Decenber
29, 1994 which pertained to the Internet conputer message showed
that a Kevin K Trummel had initiated the nessage indicating that
$ad|o élrplane woul d be operating a pirate radio station on New
ears Eve.

12 In sunmary, | have probable cause to believe that an
unlamful radio station is being operated at the aforesaid address
of 3111 Martin Dr., Joplin, Mssouri, and that all equipnent
constituting such station, including transmtters, receivers,
cables, external RF power anplifiers, and RF test equipnent, all
of which conprise by FCC definition "One Lot of Radio



Communi cations Devices, RF Power Amplifiers, and RF te
Equi pment, capable of operation between 6951 kH and 7480 kHz"
are on said prenises and subject to seizure.

Mﬁ /C/mrzﬁé

Ronald D. Ramage
El ectronics Engi neer
Federal Conmmuni cati ons Conmm SSi on

Sworn to before me and in ny presence on this day of January
1995.

Uniked States Magistrate Judge



